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The Horner-Gladin House is a two-storey solid brick structure built in 1881.
Originally the house had a rectilinear floor plan running north to south, Circa
1895, a two-storey addition was made on the esast elevation, giving the house

its present "T" shape. Shortly after 1900 a two-storey ell-shape wooden

porch was added around the northwest cormer of the original house. In recent
yvears a one-storey enclosed porch has been added in the ell on the facade.

Michael Brennan, a leading contractor in Helena, built the Eorner-Gladin
House. Though he originally intended it for his own family, he sold it
before completion to Sidney Hormer. Brennan's sound construction methods
are evident in the Hormer-Gladin House. Each wall, both exterior and
interior, is of solid brick and is 18 inches thick. Corbelling at the
base of each wall almost doubles its width at the ground level. Becausea
each wall has its own separate foundation, the basement is divided into
the same room arrangement as the upper floors.

FPour interior chimneys project above the cross gable roof with boxed cornice

and plain freize. Copper gutters catch the rain as it drains from the medium
pitch roof. Around the scuthwest corner of the house two parallel rows of
brick project slightly from the wall surface at the second storey line. Windows
feature cast stone lugsills and brick arches with radiating wvoussoirs.
Especially interesting is the two-storey gabled bhay projecting from the west
elevation. Brickwork patterns decorate the upper window head and the gable

end on this west bay.

The interior of the Horner-Gladin House features the original parquet tile
floors. Still in beautiful condition, each room's floor is laid in a slightly
different geometric pattern. One especially interesting floor is located in
the second-storey bay rcom. This fleoor has "hardwood carpeting,".a series of
long runners of horizontally laid wood separated by narrow strips of vertically
laid wood.

Anather interior feature consists of the original fireplaces, which are designed
to burn either cocal or wood. Over each fireplace the original mantelpiace

still remains in place. Along the east wall of the main hallway a stalrway
rises and returns to the second floor at the north end of the hall. Turned
balusters, +wo per tread, support the curved handrail. Wainscot like that

in the dining room lines this main hallway and stairway.

The Horner-Gladin House rests on its original site on the southwest corner
of one of the most historic blocks in Helena. The house is in excellent
condition and is carefully maintained by its present ownars.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Horner-Gladin House was built c. 1880 by Michael Brennan, Helena's leading
contractor. Brennah constructed this home for his family on the most historic
black in town. In the 1820's Sylvanus Phillips, founder of Helena and for
whom Phillips County was named, built his home on the block now bounded by
Porter, Columbia, Perry and Franklin Streets.

During the Civil War, Union forces built Fort Curtis on at lesast a part of
the block where Phillips' house had earlisr stood. Some time after the fort
was finally dismanteled in 1874, the block was' divided and sold by Sylvanus
Phillips' daughter, Mrs. Caroline Phillips Hanley. Michael Brennan bought

a portion of the block and in 1877 began building his house on the southeast
cormer.

On June 26, 1882, the deed was filed transferring Brennan's property on the
Phillips block to Sidney Horner. According to Mr. Horner's son, Dr. Albert
A. Horner, Brennan sold the house before it was completad. Thus, the Sidney
Horner family became the first occupants of the new house.

The Horner family has been prominent in Helena history since the town was
founded in 1820. -In that yvear William B. R. Horxnmer was elected as clerk of
Phillips County, and three years later served in the Territorial Legislature.
In 1836 Hormer's newohew, John S. Horner, moved to Helena from Virginia, and
soon followed his uncle's lead by being elected Phillips County Clerk in
1838. Judge John S. Horner was a successful lawyer, merchant and planter,
and was one of the most’impeortant citizens in nineteenth century Helena.

Sidney Henry Horner was the yaungest son of Judge J. S. Horner. Born abkout
1847, Sidney Horner was too yvoung for service at the outbreak of the Civil
War; however, in 1864 he enlisted in southwest Arkansas and served six
months. The three older Hormer sons joined the Confederate army in 1861,
and served throughout the war.

The Battle of Helena, a futile attempt by Confederate forces to retake the
city from occupying Federal troops, was fought on July 4, 1853. After this
destructive engagement , John S. Horner decided to move his family to a safer
location. The family originally intended to move to Ouachita County,
Arkansas, but eventually settled in Davis County, Texas. Sidney Horner, who
was sixteen at the time of the move, was in charge of the wagon train and

all the family slaves on their southwest journeyv.
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While living in Texas, Sidney Horner attended school until he enlisted in the
Confederate army. At the close of the war he again supervised the family
wagon train when the Horners returned to Helena.

In the years following the Civil War, Sidney Horner completed his education
and entered the business commuity in Helena. In 1880 he was still single
and living with his older brother's family, Judge J. J. Horner. Shortly
thereafter, Sidnev Horner married Betty Moshy and their first child, Joseph
Mosby Horner, was kborn in August, 1881. In 1882 Sidney Horner purchased

his new family the house at 626 Porter Street which Michael Brennan had built

An 1885 business directory lists Sidney Horner in partnership with his father,
John 8. Horner. The firm of "John S. Horner and Son" was a banking concern
with assets of $25,000. During the 1880's and 1890's Sidney Horner worked
with some 0of his older brothers in management of the Arkansas Midland Railrcad,
a small railroad which crossed Phillips County to connect Helena with the

St. Louis, Texas and Arkansas Pailway at Clarendon.

Az more children were born into the Eorner family, larger living quarters
wers needed. About 1895 the house was enlarged by adding a two-storey

wing to the east elevation. Originally the solid brick house had a rectili-
near floor plan running north to south, but the c. 1895 addition gave it a
"p" shape. Exterior features of note include tall arched windows, patterns
worked in brick and a two-storey bay on the west elevation.

Brennan's skill as a builder is evident in the sound construction of the
Horner House. Both the exterior and interior walls of the house are solid
brick and eighteen inches thick. Fach original wall .is built on its own
foundation, thus dividing the basement into the same room arrangement as
the upper floors.

The interiors of the Horner-Gladin House are egpecially interesting. The
original parquet tile floors remain in excellent condition and are laid in
slightly different patterns in each room. The bay xroom on the second storey
has a floor described as "hardwood carpeting.” This floor features long
runners of horizontally laid wood separated by narrow bands of vertically
laid wood strips. The original mantelpieces over each of the rireplaces are
still in place.

In 1911 the Sidney Hoxner family moved to Texas seeking a better c¢limate for
¥rs. Horner. Their home and property in Helena were sold at that time and
have changed hands several times since t¥en. The house is presently owned
and kept in excellent condition by the Gladin family.
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The Borner-Gladin House stands on one of the most historic sites in Helena.
Architecturally, this house is cne of the many significant structures in
this Mississippi River town. Its connection with one of Helena's oldest
and most prominent families makes it an important historic landmark in
the Helena community.
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